
Northern Inyo Hospital

April 15 2015 Regular Meeting
April 15 2015 Regular Meeting - April 15 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda, April 15 2015 Regular Meeting

Agenda, 4-15-15 Regular Meeting

Minutes, March 18 2015 Regular Meeting

Minutes, 3-18-15 Regular Meeting

Performance Improvement and Progressive Discipline Policy

Performance Improvement and Progressive Discipline Policy

Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Chief of Staff Report, Credentialing, Policies and Procedures

Chief of Staff Report (Credentialing, Policies & Procedures)

Performance Excellence Report

Performance Excellence Report (part 1)
Performance Excellence (Baldridge)

Financial and Statistical Reports for February 28, 2015

Financial and Statistical Reports for Feb. 28, 2015

Updated NIH Auxiliary Bylaws

NIH Auxiliary Bylaws (revised)

B Clinics Sliding Scale Discount Fee Policy

B Clinics Sliding Scale Discount Fee Policy

Agreement for General Surgery Services, A. Robinson MD

General Surgery Agreement, Allison Robinson MD

Relocation Expense Agreement, A. Robinson, MD

Relocation Expense Agreement, Allison Robinson MD

Pediatric Services Agreement, Louisa Salisbury MD

Pediatric Services Agreement, Louisa Salisbury

Relocation Expense Agreement, Louisa Salisbury MD

Relocation Expense Agreement, L. Salisbury MD

Change to Arndal and Kim OB-Gyn Agreements

..............................................................................3

..............................................................................6

.............................10

................................................14

...............................18

.................................................................36
.......................................................................47

................................................48

.................................................................................62

...........................................................69

...............................................73

.........................................90

...................................................93

................................................109



Change to Arndal and Kim OB-Gyn Agreements .................................................112

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

April 15, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Jill Kinmont Boothe School Great Room at 166 Grandview Drive, Bishop, CA 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 p.m.).          

2. Northern Inyo Hospital Auxiliary quarterly report (information item). 

3. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board.  (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of two 

minutes each.) 

 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
 

4. Approval of minutes of the March 18 2015 regular meeting  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

5. Revised Performance Improvement and Progressive Discipline Policy and Procedure 

 (information item).  

6. Policy and Procedure approval, Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process (action  

 item). 

7. Chief Executive Officer’s Report; Victoria Alexander-Lane.   

A.  Physician Recruitment update               D.  LAFCO Update, April 20 

B.  Joint Commission visit E.  Employee Recognition event, April 17 

C. FYI - Legal expenses for Union  

8. Chief of Staff Report; Mark Robinson, M.D. 

A. Approval of appointment to the NIH Provisional Consulting Medical Staff of Board-certified 

Radiology Physician Edmund Pillsbury, MD according to the approved privileges as requested 

through December 31, 2016.  This recommendation is made consequent to careful review of 

the applicant’s application and supporting documentation (action item). 

B. Privileging of Sunny Sawyer, PA-C, to function according to the approved NIH Physician 

Assistant Protocols as requested through December 31, 2016.  This recommendation is made 



Page, 2, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, April 15, 2015 
 
 

pursuant to careful review of the Physician Assistant Certified application and supporting 

documentation by majority vote (action item). 

C. Advancement from Provisional Consulting Staff of Jeanette Schneider, MD to Consulting 

Staff with clinical privileges as requested.  This recommendation is made consequent to 

careful review of the applicant’s applications and supporting documentation (action item). 

D. Granting of additional privileges as requested commensurate with their current practice to the 

following (action items): 

- Thomas McNamara, MD, Radiology 

- Joy Engblade, MD, Hospitalist 

E. Approval of the following policies/procedures/protocols, which have been reviewed and 

recommended by the appropriate Medical Staff committees (action items): 

1. Diagnostic Imaging – Imaging Equipment Quality Control 

2. Diagnostic Imaging – Monitoring and Documentation of Flouroscopic Quality Control 

3. Diagnostic Imaging – Ordering Privilege and Procedure 

4. Diagnostic Imaging – Guidelines for the use of radiology equipment in other areas 

5. Diagnostic Imaging – Self-Referral for Breast Screening Exams 

6. DI – Standards of Care 

7. Diagnostic Imaging – Nuclear Medicine New Employee/Annual Orientation 

8. Diagnostic Imaging – Ordering Radioactive Materials 

9. DI – MRI Safety, Ear Protection 

10. Diagnostic Imaging – Premedication for Radiographic Contrast Sensitivity 

11. DI – MRI Safety – Magnet Room Safety 

12. DI – CT Dose Documentation 

13. Diagnostic Imaging – Patient Priority 

14. Diagnostic Imaging – Teleradiology Services 

15. Patient Requiring Psychiatric Evaluation and Treatment 

9. Chief Nursing Officer Report (information item). 

10.  Chief Performance Excellence Officer Report (information item). 

      11.  New Business 

             A.  Approval of Financial and Statistical reports for February 2015 (action item). 

              B.  Approval of updated Northern Inyo Hospital Auxiliary Bylaws (action item). 

              C.  Northern Inyo Hospital “B” Clinics Sliding Scale Discount Fee Policy (action item). 

4/13/2015, 12:39 PM 



Page, 3, Agenda, NICLHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, April 15, 2015 
 
 
     12.  Reports from Board members (information items). 

     13. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

           A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the responsible department  

                head and the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety  

                Code, and Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

            B.  Discussion of potential litigation (Government Code section 54956(d)(2)). 

C. Discussion of OB/Gyn arrangements with Jeanine Arndal MD, and Martha Kim MD 

(Government Code Section 54957). 

     14.  Return to open session, and report of any action taken in closed session.   

     15.  Approval of agreement for General Surgery Services with Allison Robinson, MD (action item). 

     16.  Approval of Relocation Expense Agreement with Allison Robinson, M.D. (action item). 

     17.  Approval of agreement for Pediatric Services with Louisa Salisbury, M.D. (action item). 

     18.  Approval of Relocation Expense Agreement with Louisa Salisbury, MD (action item). 

     19.  Approval of changes to OB/Gyn services arrangements with Jeanine Arndal MD, and Martha Kim  

            MD (action items). 

     20.  Adjournment.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

4/13/2015, 12:39 PM 



Northern Inyo County Local Healthcare District Board of Directors      March 18, 2015 
Regular Meeting                 Page 1 of 4  
 
CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by M.C. Hubbard, President. 

 
PRESENT M.C. Hubbard, President 

Denise Hayden, Vice President  
D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 
Peter Watercott, Treasurer   
John Ungersma, M.D., Member at Large 

 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CEO REPORT 
 
 
 
 

 
Victoria Alexander-Lane, Chief Executive Officer 
Thomas Boo, M.D., Chief of Staff 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Ms. Hubbard stated at this time persons in the audience may speak on any 
items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction of the 
District Board.  She additionally noted that members of the audience will 
have the opportunity to address the Board on every item on the agenda, 
and that speakers will be limited to a maximum speaking time of two 
minutes each.   
 
The following persons spoke during public comment: 

- Michael Phillips, M.D. 
- Michael Dillon, M.D. 
- William Wolfson, M.D. 
- Becky Taylor 
- Ann Gasior, M.D. 
- Lynne Greer 
- Denise Morrill, RN 

Chief of Staff Thomas Boo, M.D. announced his resignation as Chief of 
Staff of Northern Inyo Hospital, stating that Mark Robinson, M.D. will 
step into that role in his place. 
 
Ms. Hubbard called attention to the consent agenda for this meeting, 
which contained the following items: 

- Approval of minutes of the February 9 2015 special meeting 
- Approval of minutes of the February 10 2015 special meeting 
- Approval of minutes of the February 18 2015 special meeting 
- Approval of minutes of the February 25 2015 special meeting 
- Approval of the Financial and Statistical reports for January 2015 

It was moved by D. Scott Clark, M.D., seconded by John Ungersma, M.D. 
and unanimously passed to approve the proposed consent agenda items as 
presented. 
 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Victoria Alexander-Lane provided a 
monthly report which included the following items: 

- Staff Pediatrician Kristin Collins, DO has announced her plans to 
relocate her practice out of Bishop.  Administration is currently in 
discussion with a pediatrician who may be interested in taking 



Northern Inyo County Local Healthcare District Board of Directors      March 18, 2015 
Regular Meeting                 Page 2 of 4  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
APPROVALS/DIETARY 
MANUAL APPROVAL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE, 
EMPLOYEE 
COMPLAINTS AND THE 
GRIEVANCE PROCESS 

Doctor Collins’ place. 
- Hospital administration is close to reaching an agreement with 

potential general surgeon Allison Robinson, MD who would be 
available to come on board at the start of the month of August.  

- Felix Karp MD, who has been working at NIH as a locums 
hospitalist has agreed to come on board on a permanent basis and 
join the existing hospitalist rotation. 

- The Hospital recently received a correspondence from California 
Senator  Tom Berryhill congratulating NIH on being recognized 
by Alpha Fund for achievements to improvements made in the 
areas of employee safety and patient safety 

- Ms. Alexander-Lane additionally commented that a misconception 
exists among hospital staff that many employees have recently 
been terminated from their jobs, when in fact those employees 
have been separated from employment for exceeding their 
maximum amount of leave per hospital policy. Discussion 
followed, after which the group was advised that anyone with 
additional questions may contact the NIH Human Relations office 
for more information. 

 
Thomas Boo, M.D. reported that following careful review, consideration, 
and approval by the appropriate committees, the Medical Executive 
Committee recommends approval of the following hospital wide policies 
and procedures, and the following policy and procedure manual: 

1. Standardized Procedure:  Certified Nurse Midwives First Assisting 
During Cesarean Section 

2. Policy/Procedure:  Sexual Assault Exam Policy 
3. Policy/Procedure:  Code Blue Procedure – Code Blue Team 
4. Policy/Procedure:  Gait Belt Policy 
5. Policy/Procedure:  Patient Food from Non-Hospital Sources 
6. Policy/Procedure:  Infection Prevention Plan 
7. Policy/Procedure:  Dishes in Staff Break Room Areas 
8. Clinical Diet Manual (annual approval) 

Ms. Hubbard asked that the approval dates indicated on the proposed 
policies be updated to actual.  It was then moved by Peter Watercott, 
seconded by Doctor Clark, and unanimously passed to approve policies 1 
through 7, and to approve the Clinical Diet Manual as presented. 
 
Chief Nursing Officer Katherine Decker, RN provided a monthly update 
on work performed by the Northern Inyo Hospital Nursing Department. 
 
 
 
Ms. Hubbard called attention to a revised personnel policy titled 
Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process which incorporates a 
change being made to remove the “appeal to the Board of Directors” 
based on legal counsel determination that there is no legal requirement for 
this provision. Comments were heard on this subject and discussion 



Northern Inyo County Local Healthcare District Board of Directors      March 18, 2015 
Regular Meeting                 Page 3 of 4  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
FOUNDATION BOARD 
MEMBER APPROVAL 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEETING 
DATES FOR 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
UPDATE 
 
 
APPROVAL OF FINAL 
AUDIT REPORT FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 

included dissatisfaction with the wording of NIH’s existing Progressive 
Discipline Policy.  At the conclusion of discussion it was moved by 
Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. Hayden, and unanimously passed to 
table approval of the revision to the Employee Complaints and the 
Grievance Process policy to the next meeting of the District Board, so 
that both it and a reworded version of the Progressive Discipline Policy 
can be considered further.   
 
 
NIH Foundation Executive Director Greg Bissonette requested Board 
approval for Ms. Carol Hice to be seated as a member of the NIH 
Foundation Board.  It was moved by Ms. Hayden, seconded by Doctor 
Ungersma, and unanimously passed to approve the nomination of Carol 
Hice to the NIH Foundation Board of Directors as requested. 
 
The Board then reviewed the calendar for the remaining months of 2015 
for the purpose of setting dates for the regular meetings of the District 
Board.  It was suggested by Director Watercott that meetings be held the 
third Wednesday of every month with the exception of the months of May 
and November, during which meetings could be moved to the 2nd 
Wednesday in order to avoid holiday conflicts.  It was moved by Mr. 
Watercott, seconded by Doctor Ungersma, and unanimously passed to 
approve a 3rd Wednesday of the month schedule for regular meetings, 
with the exception of the months of May and November as suggested. 
  
Ms. Alexander-Lane provided an update on progress made toward 
achieving the goals of the Healthcare District’s Strategic Plan for the 2015 
calendar year. 
 
Ms. Hubbard then called attention to approval of the final audit report for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 (from Wipfli LLP) as presented at the 
last regular meeting of the District Board.  It was moved by Mr. 
Watercott, seconded by Doctor Ungersma and unanimously passed to 
approve the final audit report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 
from Wipfli LLP as presented. 
 
Director Ungersma called attention to a correspondence received from the 
Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) which provides 
information regarding how to nominate a Trustee of the Year and/or a 
Healthcare District of the Year to be recognized for notable achievements.  
Anyone interested in obtaining more information on this subject should 
contact either Doctor Ungersma or CEO Victoria Alexander-Lane 
directly. 
  
At 7:25 pm Ms. Hubbard announced the Board of Directors would 
adjourn to closed session to: 

A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the    
responsible department head and the Medical Staff Executive 



Northern Inyo County Local Healthcare District Board of Directors      March 18, 2015 
Regular Meeting                 Page 4 of 4  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
PHYSICIAN 
AGREEMENTS WITH 
DOCTORS KIM; 
ARNDAL; AND KARP 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

B. Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (Section 32106  
       of the Health and Safety Code).  
C. Discussion of an Agreement for Obstetrical Services with Martha 

Kim, MD (Government Code Section 54957) 
D. Discussion of an Agreement for Obstetrical Services with Jeanine 

Arndal, MD (Government Code Section 54957). 
E. Discussion of an Agreement for Hospitalist Services with Felix 

Karp, MD (Government Code Section 54957). 
F. Discussion of potential litigation (Government Code section 

54956(d)(2)). 
 
At 9:20 pm the meeting returned to open session.  Ms. Hubbard reported 
that the Board took no reportable action. 
 
Ms. Hubbard then called attention to approval of the Agreement for 
OB/Gyn Services with Martha Kim, MD; the Agreement for OB/Gyn 
Services with Jeanine Arndal, MD; and the Agreement for Hospitalist 
Services with Felix Karp, MD.  It was moved by Mr. Watercott, seconded 
by Ms. Hayden, and unanimously passed to approve all three physician 
agreements as presented. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:22 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
M.C. Hubbard, President 

 
 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  D. Scott Clark, M.D., Secretary 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Employee Conduct - PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND PROGRESSIVE 
DISCIPLINE  
Scope: Hospital Wide Department:  
Source: Human Resources Effective 08/20/2014 (verbiage changed 

04/15/2015) 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
The purpose of progressive discipline is to help employees correct their issue(s) and become successful 
and productive. Progressive discipline provides supervisors with a consistent and fair process for 
handling disciplinary issues and protects the legal rights of employees and the employer. 
 
This policy and procedure is consistent with our organizational values, mission statement, HR best 
practices, and Federal/State employment laws and provides a structured process to improve and prevent 
behavior or performance issues, if they occur. 
 
POLICY: 
 
Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) expects all employees to be aware of and to follow workplace policies 
and rules for the well-being of our patients, employees and business  operations. NIH also expects 
employees to conduct themselves in an appropriate manner and to maintain a high level of job 
performance. NIH relies on individual good judgment and sense of responsibility. It is the policy of 
Northern Inyo Hospital that any conduct that interferes with or adversely affects employment is grounds 
for disciplinary action. 
 
In the State of California, employers including Northern Inyo Hospital are at will employers. Therefore, 
employees have the right to terminate their employment at any time, with or without reason, and 
Northern Inyo Hospital maintains the same right. Because Northern Inyo Hospital believes in a just 
environment, we have a progressive discipline policy and procedure. 
 
Northern Inyo Hospital considers varying factors to determine disciplinary steps or interventions – 
including but not limited to whether the offense is a repeated one despite coaching, counseling and/or 
training, the employee’s work record and the impact the conduct or performance issues have on our 
organization. The distinct nature of an offense and all of the facts that support it will determine the 
combination or omission of disciplinary steps or interventions. Outlined below are the steps of our 
progressive discipline procedure. 
 
PROCEDURES: 
 
Performance Improvement 
 
Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) works to protect its investment of time and expense devoted to employee 
on boarding, orientation and training. If an employee’s performance may improve or an issue can be 
resolved through one-time coaching or adequate corrective counseling, hospital management may 
discretionarily recommend a performance improvement plan. The hospital will determine the course of 
action best suited to the circumstances and shall employ the progressive discipline procedures outlined 
below, if appropriate. 

Page 1 of 4 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Employee Conduct - PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND PROGRESSIVE 
DISCIPLINE  
Scope: Hospital Wide Department:  
Source: Human Resources Effective 08/20/2014 (verbiage changed 

04/15/2015) 
 
 
Misconduct 
 
“Misconduct” is defined as a violation of hospital rules and policies as well as conduct that violates 
business ethics and/or state and federal law. A particular violation may be minor or major, depending on 
the surrounding facts or circumstances. Generally, but not exclusively, minor and major violations are 
defined as follows: 
 
Minor violations are less serious violations that have some effect on the continuity, efficiency of work, 
safety, and harmony within the hospital. Minor violations typically lead to corrective counseling. Further 
disciplinary action may result if minor violations are repeated or when unrelated incidents occur in rapid 
succession. Some examples of minor violations include but are not limited to: 
 

• Excessive tardiness 
• Interfering with another employee’s job performance 
• Excessive absenteeism 
• Failure to observe working hours, such as the schedule of starting time, quitting time, and rest 

and meal periods 
• Performing unauthorized personal work on hospital time 
• Failure to notify direct manager of intended absence either before or within one hour after the 

start of a shift 
 
Major violations are more serious, include any deliberate or willful infraction of hospital rules, and may 
preclude an employee’s continued employment. Some examples of major violations include but are not 
limited to: 
 

• Physical fighting on hospital premises 
• Repeated occurrences of related or unrelated minor violations, depending on the severity of the 

violation and the circumstances 
• Any act that might endanger the safety or lives of others 
• Departing hospital premises during working hours for personal reasons without a management’s 

permission 
• Bringing firearms or weapons onto hospital premises 
• Deliberately stealing, destroying, abusing, or damaging hospital property, tools, or equipment, or 

the property of another employee or visitor 
• Disclosure of confidential hospital information or trade secrets to unauthorized persons 
• Willfully disregarding hospital policies or procedures 
• Willfully falsifying any hospital records 
• Willfully deleting files and hospital records 
• Fraud, misappropriation, embezzlement, theft, or the like against the hospital 
• Conviction for a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude 

Page 2 of 4 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Employee Conduct - PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND PROGRESSIVE 
DISCIPLINE  
Scope: Hospital Wide Department:  
Source: Human Resources Effective 08/20/2014 (verbiage changed 

04/15/2015) 
 

• Any intentional act that unlawfully damages the hospital’s reputation (this provision does not 
include disclosure or discussion of working conditions, terms and conditions of employment, and 
employee wages) 

• Sexual harassment in any form toward hospital employees or anyone affiliated with the hospital 
 
Progressive Discipline 
 
Northern Inyo Hospital has found that in some instances, corrective counseling through progressive 
discipline can be an effective way of improving performance and addressing misconduct. 
 
Northern Inyo Hospital upholds a general progressive discipline policy for most performance and 
conduct issues, including verbal counseling, written warnings, suspensions, and terminations. For the 
reason that every performance and conduct issue is distinct in nature, Northern Inyo Hospital does not 
guarantee that each situation will have the benefit of the progressive discipline procedures.  Major 
violations of Northern Inyo Hospital’s policies regarding harassment, discrimination, or safety may 
result in immediate removal from the worksite and/or immediate termination. 
 
In addition, progressive discipline may be bypassed for violations of Northern Inyo Hospital’s standards 
of conduct involving violence, criminal activity, illegal substances, dishonesty, and conduct toward our 
customers, vendors, or business associates when that conduct affects the hospital’s reputation, 
credibility, or ability to carry out its business.  
 
Northern Inyo Hospital will use the following progressive discipline, when reasonable.  
 
Verbal counseling:  The first step in progressive discipline is verbal counseling.  During this step, 
management will speak to the employee about the performance or conduct issue.  Management will also 
review the employee’s job description and discuss pertinent job requirements with the employee to 
ensure his or her understanding of them. Management will carefully consider all of the circumstances 
regarding the offense, judge the severity of the problem, and look over the employee’s work record. 
Management will identify the problem and counsel the employee regarding future behaviors.  
Management will collaborate with the employee and HR to ensure the employee understands the 
significance of the issue and corrective action necessary. All communication will be documented on the 
NIH Employee Progressive Discipline Form. The employee will be notified that a written warning, 
probation, or possible termination could result if the problem is not corrected. Under appropriate 
circumstances and with approval of the section Chief as well as the Chief Human Relations Officer, 
management may direct that the verbal counseling be removed from the employee’s personnel file after 
a period of time. 
 
Written warning: When the unacceptable performance or behavior is not corrected, the next step in 
progressive discipline is a written warning. The written warning will clearly define the issue or problem 
and outline the facts associated with it. The written warning will also explain to the employee how to 

Page 3 of 4 



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Employee Conduct - PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT AND PROGRESSIVE 
DISCIPLINE  
Scope: Hospital Wide Department:  
Source: Human Resources Effective 08/20/2014 (verbiage changed 

04/15/2015) 
 
resolve the issue or problem. Management will collaborate with the employee to help them reach their 
resolution. Probation, termination or both will result if corrective action is not taken by the employee 
and observed by management. Written warnings become a part of the employee’s personnel file. Under 
appropriate circumstances and with approval of the section Chief as well as the Chief Human Relations 
Officer, management may direct that the written warning be removed from the employee’s personnel file 
after a period of time. 
 
Probation: After both verbal counseling and written warnings have been issued, the employee will be 
placed on probation if the issue or problem has not been resolved. Probation is a serious action, and the 
employee is advised that termination will occur if improvement in performance or conduct is not 
achieved within the probationary period. The employee’s direct manager will establish the length of 
probation, from 2 weeks to 60 days, after review of the employee’s corrective counseling 
documentation. Management, who will also personally meet with the employee to discuss the 
probationary letter and answer any questions, will prepare a written probationary notice to the employee. 
The purpose of the probation, as well as all other progressive discipline steps, is successful resolution of 
the issue. 
 
At the completion of the probationary period, management will determine whether the employee has 
achieved the required level of performance and consider removing the employee from probation, 
extending the period of probation, or taking further action. The employee is to be advised in writing of 
the decision. Upon successful completion of the probation, the employee will be commended for their 
determination and effort as well as counseled that any future recurrence may result in further 
disciplinary action. 
 
Termination:  Termination is the final step of the progressive discipline policy when corrective actions 
fail to remedy unsatisfactory performance or put an end to misconduct. Termination of employment can 
also occur when an employee is involved in a serious offense that warrants immediate termination.  
 
FORMS: 
Available under Human Resources – Procedures and Forms: 
Employee Performance Improvement Plan 
Employee Progressive Discipline 
 
Approval Date 
Senior Management 08/11/2014 

(verbiage changed 
03/30/2015) 

Board of Directors 08/20/2014 (verbiage 
changed 04/15/2015) 

 

Page 4 of 4 





































































                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

What Is Baldrige?

• Comprehensive management discipline 
embraced by organizations dedicated to 
achieving best-in-class status

• Developed and modified since 1987 to provide 
organizations with a framework that promotes 
excellence

• Began in 1987 and named after Malcolm 
Baldrige, Secretary of Commerce under Reagan

• An integrated systems approach (See figure.)

An Integrated, Systems Approach

which
feed into 7

(Blazey, 2008)

1-6 
are systems

Why Baldrige?
• Helps to identify processes and results that 

match best-in-class organizations and 
opportunities for improvement

• Provides a framework and roadmap to help 
move an organization from a culture of 
compliance to a sustainable culture of 
performance excellence.

“I see the Baldrige process as a powerful set of mechanisms for 
disciplined people engaged in disciplined thought and taking disciplined 
action to create great organizations that produce exceptional results.”

-Jim Collins, author of Good to Great

Beyond Compliance
What Does It Look Like?

Southcentral Foundation-24th Annual Quest for Excellence Video
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=vIScOcJ4qN8

 

Beyond Compliance
What Does It Look Like?

• Level III, Patient Centered Medical Home™ three-year recognition (2013-2016 
and 2009-2012) - from the National Committee for Quality Assurance. The Patient 
Centered Medical Home standards emphasize the use of systematic, patient-
centered, coordinated care that supports access, communication and patient 
involvement. 

• Indian Health Service Director's Award (2012)
• Alaska Cultural Humanitarian Award (2012) - presented by the Alaska 

Psychological Association 
• Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award (2011)
• Cerner Consulting Project Excellence Award (2011)
• League of American Bicyclists' Bicycle Friendly Business Award (2010)
• Alaska Performance Excellence (APEX) Award (2009)
• U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services SAMHSA Science & Service Award (2009) -

for behavioral health/primary care integration
• Joint Commission accreditation (ANMC hospital and primary care center) - a 

nationally recognized symbol of quality
• Magnet® status for nursing excellence (ANMC hospital) - an honor bestowed to 

only 5 percent of U.S. hospitals

Source: https://www.southcentralfoundation.com/awards.cfm

Beyond Compliance
What Does It Look Like?

To learn more about 
Schneck's"Patient First Culture" 
(http://schneckmed.org/Baldrige/)

MEDITECH's story "From Great to 
Oustanding.“
https://www.meditech.com/aboutmeditec
h/pages/customerachieveSchneckbaldrige
0112.htm

Other Healthcare Baldrige Winners
• Hill Country Memorial & St. David’s Healthcare 

(2014)
• Sutter Davis Hospital (2013)
• North Mississippi Medical Center (2012, 2006)
• Henry Ford Health System, Schneck Medical 

Center, Southcentral Foundation (2011)
• Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital (2010)
• AtlantiCare & Heartland Health (2009)
• Poudre Valley Health System (2008)
• Mercy Health System, Sharp Healthcare (2007)

The Baldrige Journey

(Goonan, Muzikowski, Stoltz, 2009)
 

The NIH Journey…working our 
way to base camp & beyond…
one step at a time

• To learn more about Baldrige, 
go to: 
http://www.nist.gov/baldrige/

• To learn more about Baldrige
Award recipients, go to: 
http://patapsco.nist.gov/Awar
d_Recipients/index.cfm

 
Rev. 4/4/15 mjs 

1 
 





















































                     NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
            EMPLOYMENT 

AND PRACTICE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
  

  
  
This Agreement is made and entered into on this _____ day of______, 2015 by and between 
Northern Inyo County Local Healthcare District (“District”) 1206 B Clinic and Allison 
Robinson, M.D. (“Physician”). 
  
  

RECITALS 
A. District, which is organized and exists under the California Local Health Care District Law, 

Health & Safety Code section 32000, et seq., operates Northern Inyo Hospital (“Hospital”), a 
general acute care hospital and Northern Inyo Associates, a 1206 B Clinic serving northern 
Inyo County, California, including the communities of Bishop and Big Pine. 

B. The District Board of Directors has found, by Resolution No. 09-01, that it will be in the best 
interests of the public health of the aforesaid communities to obtain a licensed physician and 
surgeon who is a board-certified/eligible specialist in the practice of General Surgery, to 
practice in said communities, on the terms and conditions set forth below. 

C. Physician is a physician and surgeon, licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, 
and a member of the American College of Surgeons. Physician desires to maintain her 
practice ("Practice") in Bishop, California, and practice Surgery in the aforesaid 
communities. 

  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
  

I. 
 COVENANTS OF PHYSICIAN 

                                
Physician shall maintain her Practice in medical offices (“Offices”) provided by District at a 
place to be mutually agreed upon in Bishop, California and shall, for the term of this Agreement, 
do the following: 
  
1.01.  Services.  Physician shall provide Hospital with the benefit of her direct patient care 

expertise and experience, and shall render those services necessary to enable Hospital to 
achieve its goals and objectives for the provision of Surgical Services.  The scope of 
services to be performed by Physician is described in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference herein.  Physician shall provide Hospital with patient medical 
record documentation of all direct patient care services rendered hereunder; such 
documentation shall be submitted to Hospital on an ongoing basis, and shall be in the 
form, and contain the information, requested by the Hospital such that a complete 
medical record can be assembled. 

1 
 



  
1.02. Limitation on Use of Space.  No part of any offices provided by the District either by 

lease or other arrangement shall be used at any time by Physician as anything other than 
the private practice of SURGICAL medicine unless specifically agreed to, in writing, by 
the parties. 

  
1.03.   Medical Staff Membership and Service:  Physician shall: 

a) Maintain Active Medical Staff (“Medical Staff”) membership with Surgical 
privileges sufficient to support a full time SURGICAL practice, for the term of this 
Agreement. 

b) Provide on-call coverage to the Hospital’s Emergency Services within the scope of 
privileges granted to her by Hospital and as required by the Hospital Medical Staff. 
Physician shall not be required to provide more than fifty percent (50%) of the annual 
call in weekly increments unless otherwise agreed upon from time to time. 

c) Maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to all costs and 
expenses incurred, and revenue acquired, pursuant to this Agreement to the extent, 
and in such detail, as will properly reflect all net costs, direct and indirect, of labor, 
materials, equipment, supplies, services, and other costs and expenses of whatever 
nature, for which she may claim payment or reimbursement from the District.  
Physician acknowledges and agrees that any federal office authorized by law shall 
have access, for the purpose of audit and examination, to any books, documents, 
papers, and records of Physician which are relevant to this Agreement, at all 
reasonable times for a period of four (4) years following the termination of this 
Agreement, during which period Physician shall preserve and maintain said books, 
documents, papers, and records.  Physician further agrees to transfer to the District, 
upon termination of this Agreement, any books, documents, papers or records which 
possess long-term [i.e., more than four (4) years] value to the Hospital.  Physician 
shall include a clause providing similar access in any sub-contract she may enter with 
a value of more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or for more than a twelve (12) 
month period, when said sub-contract is with a related organization. 

d) At all times comply with all relevant policies, rules and regulations of the Hospital, 
subject to California and federal statutes governing the practice of medicine. 

 
 

II. 
COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT 

  
2.01. Hospital Services. 
   

a) Space.  Hospital shall make the Offices available for the operation of Physician’s 
Practice either through a direct let at no cost to the physician or through an 
arrangement with a landlord, also at no cost to the physician, other than the fees 
retained by the hospital (3.05). 

b) Equipment.  In consultation with Physician, Hospital shall provide all equipment as 
may be reasonably necessary for the proper operation and conduct of Physician's 

2 
 



practice.  Hospital shall repair, replace or supplement such equipment and maintain it 
in good working order. 

  
2.02. General Services.  District shall furnish ordinary janitorial services, maintenance 

services, and utilities, including telephone service, as may be required for the proper 
operation and conduct of Physician’s Practice. 

  
2.03. Supplies.  District shall purchase and provide all supplies as may be reasonably required 

for the proper treatment of Physician’s Practice patients.  Physician shall inform Hospital 
of supply needs in a timely manner and shall manage the use of supplies in an efficient 
manner that promotes quality and cost-effective patient care. 

  
2.04. Personnel.  District shall determine the initial number and types of employees required 

for the operation of the Practice and place them in the Practice initially. Physician and 
Hospital will mutually agree to subsequent  
      staffing requirements. Physician shall not be required to maintain any personnel that she 
does not feel is appropriate for the practice. 

  
2.05. Business Operations.  District shall be responsible for all business operations related to 

operation of the Practice, including personnel management, billing and payroll functions. 
Physician will provide the appropriate billing codes, which will be used unless changed 
by mutual consent of the Physician and Hospital. Hospital will incur and pay all 
operating expenses of the Practice. 

  
2.06. Hospital Performance.  The responsibilities of District under this Article shall be 

conditional upon and subject to District’s discretion and its usual purchasing practices, 
budget limitations and applicable laws and regulations. 

  
2.07. Practice Hours. The District desires, and Physician agrees, that Physician’s Practice 

shall operate on a full-time basis, maintaining hours of operation in keeping with the full 
time practice of one GENERAL surgeon while permitting a surgery schedule sufficient to 
serve the patients of the Practice. Specific shifts will be scheduled according to normal 
operating procedures of the Practice and will be mutually agreed upon with Physician. 

                 
III. 

COMPENSATION 
  

3.01. Compensation.  During the term of this agreement, District shall guarantee Physician an 
annual income of $350,000.  All payments shall be made on the same date as the District 
normally pays its employees. Physician shall receive a one-time sign on bonus of $10,000 
to be paid upon District receiving a signed contract. Physician shall be eligible for up to 
$3000 per year for CME expenses including lodging, travel and tuition. 

  
3.02. Malpractice Insurance. District will secure and maintain her malpractice insurance with 

limits of no less than $1 million per occurrence and $3 million per year.    
 

3 
 



3.03. Health Insurance. At all times during the Term of this Agreement, including any 
extensions or renewals thereof, Physician will be admitted to the Hospital’s self-funded 
Medical/Dental/Vision Benefit Plan and be provided the benefits as an employee. 

             
3.04. Billing for Professional Services.  Subject to section 2.05 above, Physician    
            assigns to District all claims, demands and rights of Physician to bill and collect    
            for all professional services rendered to Practice patients, for all billings for  
            surgical services, and for all billings for consulting performed or provided by the  
            Physician. Physician acknowledges that Hospital shall be solely responsible for  
            billing and collecting for all professional services provided by Physician to Practice  
            patients at Practice and for all surgical services performed at the Hospital, and for    

managing all Practice receivables and payables, including those related to Medicare and 
MediCal beneficiaries.  Physician shall not bill or collect for any services rendered to 
Practice patients or Hospital patients, and all Practice receivables and billings shall be the 
sole and exclusive property of Practice.  In particular, any payments made pursuant to a 
payer agreement (including co- payments made by patients) shall constitute revenue of 
the Practice.  In the event payments are made to Physician pursuant to any payer 
agreement, Physician shall promptly remit the payments directly to District.  

  
  

IV. 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

  
4.01. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be three (3) years beginning on _________2015 

and ending on ____________2018. The Agreement may be renewed, by written 
instrument signed by both parties, no later than 120 days before its expiration date.  
   

4.02. Termination.  Notwithstanding the provisions of section 4.01, this Agreement may be 
terminated: 

a) By District or Physician at any time, without cause or penalty, upon one hundred and 
eighty (180) days’ prior written notice to the respective party. 

b) Immediately by District in its sole discretion if Physician fails to maintain the 
professional standards described in Article V of this Agreement; 

c) Immediately upon closure of the Hospital or Practice; 

d) By either party upon written notice to the other party in the event that any federal, 
state or local government or agency passes, issues or promulgates any law, rule, 
regulation, standard or interpretation at any time while this Agreement is in effect that 
prohibits, restricts, limits or in any way substantially changes the arrangement 
contemplated herein or which otherwise significantly affects either party’s rights or 
obligations under this Agreement; provided that in such event, District must give 
notice to Physician equal to that provided to District by the relevant federal, state or 
local government or agency. If this Agreement can be amended to the satisfaction of 
both parties to compensate for any such prohibition, restriction, limitation or change, 
this clause shall not be interpreted to prevent such amendment; or 

4 
 



e)  By either party in the event of a material breach by the other party and, in such event, 
the non-breaching party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after 
providing thirty (30) days’ written notice to the breaching party, explaining the 
breach, unless such breach is cured to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party 
within the thirty (30) days. 

  
4.03. Rights Upon Termination.  Upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, all 

rights and obligations of the parties shall cease except those rights and obligations that 
have accrued or expressly survive termination. 

  
  

V. 
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 

  
5.01. Medical Staff Membership.  It is a condition precedent of District’s obligation under 

this Agreement that Physician maintains Active Medical Staff membership on the 
Hospital Medical Staff with appropriate clinical privileges and maintain such 
membership and privileges throughout the term of this Agreement.  

  
5.02. Licensure and Standards.  Physician shall: 

a) At all times be licensed to practice medicine in the State of California; 

b) Comply with all policies, bylaws, rules and regulations of Hospital, Hospital Medical 
Staff, and Practice, including those related to documenting all advice to patients and 
proper sign-off of lab and X-ray reports; 

c) Be a member in good standing of the Provisional or Active Medical Staff of Hospital; 

d) Maintain professional liability coverage in an amount required for membership on the 
Active Medical Staff of Hospital; 

e) Participate in continuing education as necessary to maintain licensure and the current 
standard of practice; and 

f) Comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of any and all governmental 
authorities, and applicable standards and recommendations of the Joint Commission. 

g) At all times conduct herself, professionally and publicly, in accordance with the 
standards of the medical profession, the American College of Surgeons, the Hospital 
Medical Staff, and the District.   Further, she shall not violate any law which prohibits 
(1) driving a motor vehicle under the influence of alcohol or prescription drugs or the 
combined influence of such substances, (2) unlawful use of controlled substances, (3) 
being intoxicated in a public place in such a condition as to be a danger to herself or 
others, and/or (4) conduct justifying imposition of an injunction prohibiting 
harassment of Hospital employees in their workplace.   Entry of any injunction, 
judgment, or order against Physician based upon facts which constitute any of the 
above offenses shall be a material breach of this Agreement. 

  
  

5 
 



VI. 
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES 

  
6.01. Professional Relationship  

Independent Clinician.  In the performance of Physician’s work and duties, Physician is 
at all times acting and performing as an independent clinician practicing the profession of 
medicine.  District shall neither have nor exercise control or direction over the methods 
by which Physician performs professional services pursuant to this Agreement; provided, 
however, that Physician agrees that all work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be in strict accordance with currently approved methods and practices in Physician’s 
professional specialty and in accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement. 

  
6.02. Responsibility for Own Acts.  Each party will be responsible for its own acts or 

omissions and all claims, liabilities, injuries, suits, demands and expenses for all kinds 
which may result or arise out of any malfeasance or neglect, caused or alleged to have 
been caused by either party, their employees or representatives, in the performance or 
omission of any act or responsibility of either party under this contract.  In the event that 
a claim is made against both parties, it is the intent of both parties to cooperate in the 
defense of said claim and to cause their insurers to do likewise.  However, both parties 
shall have the right to take any and all actions they believe necessary to protect their 
interest.                                     

  
  

VII. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

  
7.01. No Solicitation.  Physician agrees that she will not, either directly or indirectly, during 

and after the term of this Agreement, call on, solicit, or take away, or attempt to call on, 
solicit, or take away any patients or patient groups with whom Physician dealt or became 
aware of as a result of Physician’s past, present or future affiliation with Hospital and 
Practice.   
  

7.02. Access to Records.  To the extent required by Section 1861(v)(i)(I) of the Social 
Security Act, as amended, and by valid regulation which is directly applicable to that 
Section, Physician agrees to make available upon valid written request from the Secretary 
of HHS, the Comptroller General, or any other duly authorized representatives, this 
Agreement and the books, documents and records of Physician to the extent that such 
books, documents and records are necessary to certify the nature and extent of Hospital’s 
costs for services provided by Physician. 

  
Physician shall also make available such subcontract and the books, documents, and 
records of any subcontractor if that subcontractor performs any of the Physician’s duties 
under this Agreement at a cost of $10,000.00 or more over a twelve (12) month period, 
and if that subcontractor is organizationally related to Physician. 
  

6 
 



Such books, documents, and records shall be preserved and available for four (4) years 
after the furnishing of services by Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  If Physician is 
requested to disclose books, documents or records pursuant to this subsection for 
purposes of an audit, Physician shall notify Hospital of the nature and scope of such 
request, and Physician shall make available, upon written request of Hospital, all such 
books, documents or records.  Physician shall indemnify and hold harmless Hospital in 
the event that any amount of reimbursement is denied or disallowed because of the failure 
of Physician or any subcontractor to comply with its obligations to maintain and make 
available books, documents, or records pursuant to this subsection.  Such indemnity shall 
include, but not be limited to the amount of reimbursement denied, plus any interest, 
penalties and legal costs. 

  
This section is intended to assure compliance with Section 1861 of the Social Security 
Act, as amended, and regulations directly pertinent to that Act.  The obligations of 
Physician under this section are strictly limited to compliance with those provisions, and 
shall be given effect only to the extent necessary to insure compliance with those 
provisions.  In the event that the requirements or those provisions are reduced or 
eliminated, the obligations of the parties under this section shall likewise be reduced or 
eliminated. 

  
7.03. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the 

parties, but any such amendment must be in writing, dated, and signed by both parties.   
  
7.04. No Referral Fees.  No payment or other consideration shall be made under this 

Agreement for the referral of patients, by Physician, to Hospital or to any nonprofit 
corporation affiliated with District. 

  
7.05. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign, sell, transfer or delegate any of the Physician’s 

rights or duties, including by hiring or otherwise retaining additional physicians to 
perform services pursuant to this Agreement, without the prior written consent of 
Hospital. 

  
7.06. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced, by either party, 

to enforce rights, duties, and/or responsibilities under this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs.   

  
7.07 Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed 

by, the laws of the State of California. 
  
7.08. Exhibits.  All Exhibits attached and referred to herein are fully incorporated by this 

reference. 
  

7.09 Notices.  All notices or other communications under this Agreement shall be sent to the 
parties at the addresses set forth below: 
  
 

7 
 



Hospital: Chief Executive Officer 
                    Northern Inyo Hospital 
                        150 Pioneer Lane 
             Bishop, CA   93514 
  
Physician: Allison Robinson, M.D. 
   152 Pioneer Lane 
  Bishop, CA 93514  

  
  
Notice may be given either personally or by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed 
to the party designated above at the address designated above, or an address subsequently 
specified in writing by the relevant party.  If given by mail, notice shall be deemed given 
two (2) days after the date of the postmark on the envelope containing such notice. 
  

7.11. Records.  All files, charts and records, medical or otherwise, generated by Physician in 
connection with services furnished during the term of this Agreement are the property of 
Practice.  Physician agrees to maintain medical records according to Practice policies and 
procedures and in accordance with community standards.  Each party agrees to maintain 
the confidentiality of all records and materials in accordance with all applicable state and 
federal laws.  Hospital agrees to permit Physician to have access, during or after the term 
of the Agreement, to medical records generated by Physician if necessary in connection 
with claims, litigation, investigations, or treatment of patients.  

  
7.12. Prior Agreements.  This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement 

of the parties as to those matters contained in it.  No prior oral or written understanding 
shall be of any force or effect with respect to the matters contained in this Agreement.  
This Agreement may be modified only by a writing signed by each party or his/its lawful 
agent. 

  
7.13. Referrals.  This Agreement does not impose any obligation or requirement that Hospital 

shall make any referral of patients to Physician or that Physician shall make any referral 
of patients to Hospital.  The payment of compensation pursuant to section 3.01 is not 
based in any way on referrals of patients to Hospital. 

  
7.14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal or 

unenforceable, that provision shall be severed from this Agreement, and the remaining 
provisions shall remain enforceable betweens the parties. 

  
7.15. Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not 

operate as a waiver of that right. 
  
7.16.    Gender and Number.  Use of the masculine gender shall mean the feminine or neuter, 

and the plural number the singular, and vice versa, as the context shall indicate. 
  

8 
 



7.17. Authority and Executive.   By their signature below, each of the parties represent that 
they have the authority to execute this Agreement and do hereby bind the party on whose 
behalf their execution is made.  

  
7.18.    Construction.  This Agreement has been negotiated and prepared by both parties and it 

shall be assumed, in the interpretation of any uncertainty, that both parties caused it to 
exist. 

  
  
  
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY                            PHYSICIAN 
LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT            

  
    
  
By _________________________________     By_______________________________ 
     Victoria Alexander Lane, CEO                         Allison Robinson, M.D. 
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 
 



EXHIBIT A 

 SCOPE OF DUTIES OF THE PHYSICIAN 

  
POSITION SUMMARY 

  
The Physician is a Member of the Northern Inyo Hospital Active Medical Staff.  Physician 
provides direct diagnosis and treatment to Practice and Hospital patients.  The Physician will 
provide services commensurate with the equivalent of a full time Surgical Practice.  Full time 
shall mean regularly scheduled office hours to meet the service area demand and performance of 
surgeries as may be required.  Full time shall also mean the provision of no more than four (4) 
weeks of vacation and two (2) weeks of time to acquire CME credits, if needed, as well as all 
recognized national holidays. All time off will be coordinated with Call coverage such that 
scheduled time off will not conflict with the Physician's call requirement. 
  
Specifically, the Physician will: 

1. Provide high quality primary medical and surgical services. 

2. Direct the need for on-going educational programs that serve the patient. 

3. Evaluate and develop treatment plans to facilitate the individual healthcare needs of each 
patient. 

4. Work with all Practice personnel to meet the healthcare needs of all patients. 

5. Assess, evaluate, and monitor on-going health care and medication of Practice patients.  

6. Manage medical and surgical emergencies within the scope of practice. 

7.  Participate in professional development activities and maintain professional affiliations. 

8. Participate with Hospital to meet all federal and state regulations. 

9. Accept emergency call as provided herein. 

10. Support and utilize the hospital’s and Clinic’s Electronic Health Records. 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 
 



                                          EXHIBIT B 
 
 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title:  Professional Conduct. Prohibition of Disruptive or Discriminatory Behavior 
Scope:  Hospital wide Department:  Medical Staff 
Source:  Medical Staff Effective Date:  12/5/07 
 

POLICY 
 
All Medical Staff members shall conduct themselves at all times while on Hospital premises in a 
courteous, professional, respectful, collegial, and cooperative manner.  This applies to 
interactions and communications with or relating to Medical Staff colleagues, AHPs, nursing and 
technical personnel, other caregivers, other Hospital personnel, patients, patients’ family 
members and friends, visitors, and others.  Such conduct is necessary to promote high quality 
patient care and to maintain a safe work environment.  Disruptive, discriminatory, or harassing 
behavior, as defined below, are prohibited and will not be tolerated. 
 
Definitions 
 
A. “Disruptive Behavior” is marked by disrespectful behavior manifested through personal 

interaction with practitioners, Hospital personnel, patients, family members, or others, 
which: 

 
1. Interferes, or tends to interfere with high quality patient care or the orderly 

administration of the Hospital or the Medical Staff; or 
  
 2. Creates a hostile work environment; or 
  

3. Is directed at a specific person or persons, would reasonably be expected to cause 
substantial emotional distress, and serves no constructive purpose in advancing 
the goals of health care. 

 
B. “Discrimination” is conduct directed against any individual (e.g., against another Medical 

Staff member, AHP, Hospital employee, or patient) that deprives the individual of full 
and equal accommodations, advantages, facilities, privileges, or services, based on the 
individual’s race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental 
disability, medical disability, marital status, sex, gender, or sexual orientation. 

 
C. “Sexual harassment” is unwelcome verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, which 

may include verbal harassment (such as epithets, derogatory comments or slurs), physical 
harassment (such as unwelcome touching, assault, or interference with movement or 
work), and visual harassment (such as the display of derogatory or sexual-themed 
cartoons, drawings or posters).  Sexual harassment includes unwelcome advances, 

11 
 



requests for sexual favors, and any other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature when (1) submission to or rejection of this conduct by an individual is used as a 
factor in decisions affecting hiring, evaluation, retention, promotion, or other aspects of 
employment; or (2) this conduct substantially interferes with the individual’s employment 
or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment.  Sexual harassment 
also includes conduct indicating that employment and/or employment benefits are 
conditioned upon acquiescence in sexual activities. 

 
Examples of Prohibited Conduct 
 
Examples of prohibited, disruptive conduct may include, but are not limited to, any of the 
conducts described below if it is found to interfere, or tend to interfere, with patient care or the 
orderly administration of the Hospital or Medical Staff; or, if it creates a hostile work 
environment; or, if it is directed at a specific person or persons, causes substantial emotional 
distress, and has no legitimate purpose: 
 
A. Any striking, pushing, or inappropriate touching of Hospital Staff or others; 
 
B. Any conduct that would violate Medical Staff and/or Hospital policies relating to 

discrimination and/or sexual harassment; 
 
C. Forcefully throwing, hitting, pushing, or slamming objects in an expression of anger or  
            frustration; 
 
D. Yelling, screaming, or using an unduly loud voice directed at patients, Hospital 

employees, other practitioners, or others; 
 
E. Refusing to respond to a request by any caregiver for orders, instructions, or assistance 

with the care of a patient, including, but not limited to, repeated failure to respond to calls 
or pages; 

 
F. Use of racial, ethnic, epithetic, or derogatory comments, or profanity, directed at Hospital 

employees or others; 
 
G. Criticism which is unreasonable and unprofessional of Hospital or Medical Staff 

personnel (including other practitioners), policies or equipment, or other negative 
comments that undermine patient trust in the Hospital or Medical Staff in the presence or 
hearing of patients, patients’ family members, and/or visitors; 

 
H. Use of medical record entries to criticize Hospital or Medical Staff personnel, policies, or 

equipment, other practitioners, or others; 
 
I. Unauthorized use and/or disclosure of confidential or personal information related to any 

employee, patient, practitioner, or other person; 
 
J. Use of threatening or offensive gestures; 

12 
 



 
K. Intentional filing of false complaints or accusations; 
 
L. Any form of retaliation against a person who has filed a complaint against a practitioner 

alleging violation of the above standard of conduct; 
 
M. Use of physical or verbal threats to Hospital employees, other practitioners, or others, 

including, without limitation, threats to get an employee fired or disciplined; 
 
N. Persisting to criticize, or to discuss performance or quality concerns with particular 

Hospital employees or others after being asked to direct such comments exclusively 
through other channels; 

 
O. Persisting in contacting a Hospital employee or other person to discuss personal or 

performance matters after that person or a supervisory person, the Chief Executive 
Officer (“CEO”), or designee, or Medical Staff leader, has requested that such contacts be 
discontinued [NOTE: MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO 
PROVIDE COMMENTS, SUGGESTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS RELATING 
TO HOSPITAL EMPLOYEES, SERVICES OR FACILITIES; WHERE SUCH 
INFORMATION IS PROVIDED THROUGH APPROPRIATE ADMINISTRATIVE 
OR SUPERVISORY CHANNELS];  

 
P. Obstructing the peer review process by intentionally refusing, without justification, to 

attend meetings or respond to questions about the practitioner’s conduct or professional 
practice when the practitioner is the subject of a focused review or investigation.   

 
PROCEDURE  
 
Hospital Staff Response to Disruptive or Discriminatory Behavior or Sexual 

Harassment (“Walk Away Rule”) 
Any Hospital employee (“Caregiver”) who believes that he or she is being subjected to 
disruptive or discriminatory behavior or sexual harassment within the meaning of this Policy by 
a Medical Staff member is authorized and directed to take the following actions: 
 
A. Promptly contact the Caregiver’s immediate supervisor to report the situation and to 

arrange for the transition of patient care as necessary in order to permit the Caregiver to 
avoid conversing or interacting with the Practitioner; 

 
B. Discontinue all conversation or interaction with the Practitioner except to the extent 

necessary to transition patient care responsibility safely and promptly from the Caregiver 
to another qualified person as directed by the Caregiver’s supervisor; 

 
C. Continue work or patient care activity elsewhere as directed; and  
 

13 
 



D. Consult with supervisory personnel or with the Director of Human Resources about filing 
a written report of the alleged incident.  

 
 
Enforcement 
 
A. Allegations 
 

1.  All allegations of disruptive behavior, discrimination, or sexual harassment, as defined 
above, by a Practitioner involving a patient or involving another member of the 
Medical or AHP staff shall be forwarded, in writing, to Medical Staff Administration.  
If the Chief of Staff determines that the allegations are supported by reliable 
evidence, the Chief of Staff shall forward the allegation to the Medical Executive 
Committee (“MEC”) for action consistent with the Medical Staff Bylaws.  Pursuant 
to Section 7.1.2.5.2 of these Bylaws, the Chief of Staff shall also consult with the 
Administrator.   

 
2. Allegations of disruptive behavior, discrimination, or sexual harassment, as defined 

above, by a Practitioner, directed toward hospital employees or persons other than 
patients and Medical Staff members, will be immediately forwarded to the Chief of 
Staff. The Chief of Staff, or designee, shall promptly conduct an initial evaluation.  If 
the Chief of Staff or designee determines that the complaint may be valid, she or he 
shall inform the Hospital Administrator and shall then proceed as provided herein. 

 
3. If the allegations involve the Chief of Staff, the Vice Chief of Staff shall take over the 

responsibilities of the Chief of Staff under this section. If the allegations involve a 
member of the Medical Executive Committee, that member shall not participate or be 
present during the Medical Executive Committee’s consideration of the matter. 

 
4. Initial complaints of disruptive behavior, discrimination, or sexual harassment by a 

Practitioner shall be documented on an incident reporting form and shall be 
maintained in the Medical Staff Office. Where possible, reports should include: 

 
a. Name(s) of individual(s) involved; 
b. Date, time and place of incident; 
c. A factual description and detailing of the incident; 
d. All witnesses to the incident including any patient or patient’s family member or 

visitor; 
e. The immediate effects or consequences of the incident; and 
f. Any action taken by anyone to intervene or remedy the incident. 

 
B. Initial Investigation and Mediation 
 

1. The Chief of Staff shall promptly establish an Ad Hoc Committee to investigate the 
complaint. If the complaining party is a Hospital employee, the Ad Hoc Committee 
shall include: the Chief of Staff or designee, the Chair of the practitioner’s Clinical 

14 
 



Department or designee, the complaining employee’s immediate supervisor, and the 
Hospital Administrator or designee.  The Ad Hoc Committee shall take written 
statements from the complaining party, any witnesses, and the accused.  The 
complaining party shall be informed of the process to investigate and respond to such 
allegations and shall be informed that retaliation for making such allegations will not 
be tolerated.  The complaining party shall also be informed that if he or she makes a 
written statement, the statement may be made available to the Practitioner who is the 
subject of the allegations. 

 
2. All witness statements and investigation documents shall be maintained in the 

Medical Staff Office as confidential, peer review documents. 
 

3. If the complaint appears to be supported by reliable evidence, the Ad Hoc Committee 
shall meet with the Practitioner who is the subject of the complaint and advise the 
Practitioner of his or her obligations under this policy; that a complaint has been 
made; and that no retaliation against any complaining person, witness or investigator 
will be tolerated.  The Chair of the Ad Hoc Committee shall provide the Practitioner 
with sufficient information to understand and respond to the allegations made by the 
complaining party.  The Practitioner shall be permitted to respond orally or in writing 
to the allegations.  Any written statement provided by the Practitioner and all 
documentation of the investigation created by the Chief of Staff or designee, or by the 
Ad Hoc Committee, shall be maintained as confidential Medical Staff documents.  
The Ad Hoc Committee meeting with the Practitioner shall not constitute a hearing 
and the Practitioner shall not be entitled to legal counsel or other representation 
during the meeting.  The Practitioner may, of course, seek legal counsel outside the 
meeting process.   

 
4. The Chief of Staff or designee shall advise the Hospital Administrator of the 

complaint and the status of the investigation.   Although legal counsel are not 
permitted to be present during interviews or meetings provided for in these 
provisions, the Chief of Staff or designee are encouraged to consult with Medical 
Staff legal counsel and the Practitioner, at his or her own expense, may consult legal 
counsel outside the investigation and meeting process.   

 
5. The Chief of Staff or designee and Hospital Administrator shall take appropriate steps 

to assure that employees, witnesses and others are protected from discrimination, 
harassment, or retaliation pending the resolution of the complaint. 

 
6. The Ad Hoc Committee shall attempt, if feasible and appropriate, to persuade the 

parties to agree to a resolution of the complaint, which would be produced in written 
form and signed by both parties. 

 
7. If the Practitioner is determined to be at fault, the Ad Hoc Committee may enter into 

a voluntary conduct agreement with the Practitioner; may refer the Practitioner to the 
Medical Staff Assistance Committee; may refer the Practitioner for counseling or 

15 
 



evaluation; or may coordinate other steps to reach an effective voluntary resolution of 
the issue. 

   
C. Formal Action 
 

1. If the Ad Hoc Committee, or its Chair, concludes that the matter cannot be resolved 
through voluntary actions and agreements, the Chair shall refer the matter to the MEC 
with a request for formal corrective action in accordance with Article 8 of the 
Bylaws. In the event of such referral, any member of the Medical Executive 
Committee who is the subject of the investigation shall not participate or be present 
during the Medical Executive Committee’s consideration of the matter, except as is 
provided in subparagraph 2 or 3, below. 

 
2. If immediate action must be taken in response to an imminent risk to the health or 

safety of any person, any person authorized under Section 7.1 to request corrective 
action may summarily suspend the Practitioner’s Medical Staff membership and 
privileges in accordance with Section 7.2 of the Bylaws. In that event, the Practitioner 
shall be entitled to request an interview with the MEC to review the suspension 
within five (5) days of the suspension.  The provisions of the Bylaws shall be 
followed for review of summary suspensions.   
 

3. If the MEC initiates a corrective action investigation of the complaint, it shall, where 
feasible, assure that the investigation, although not constituting a hearing, shall 
include the following elements:  

 
a. The Practitioner shall be entitled to review, but not retain, copies of statements 

made by complaining parties and witnesses.  The Practitioner shall also be 
entitled to receive a summary of other adverse information considered relevant to 
the investigation. 
 

b. The Practitioner shall be entitled to respond to the adverse statements and 
information and to submit oral or written information in response, subject to such 
conditions and limitations as the MEC may determine. 

 
c. If the MEC determines that there is substantial evidence that a violation of this 

policy has occurred, it may do any one or more of the following: 
 

1) Issue a written or oral reprimand.  If a written or oral reprimand is issued, the 
Practitioner shall be entitled to reply orally or in writing to the MEC.  A copy 
of any written reprimand and any written reply shall be maintained in the 
Practitioner’s credentials file.  A written reprimand shall not be considered 
medical disciplinary action, shall not be reported to the Medial Board of 
California or the National Practitioner Data Bank, and shall not entitle the 
Practitioner to a hearing or appeal under Article 8 of the Bylaws.  

 

16 
 



2) Recommend that the Practitioner undertake psychoanalysis, therapy, 
counseling, or training. 

 
3) Recommend other corrective action in accordance with Article 8 of the 

Bylaws.  
 

4) If the MEC recommends action, which would entitle the Practitioner to 
request a Medical Staff hearing, special notice to the Practitioner shall be 
given in accordance with Section 8.6.2 of the Bylaws.  

 
D. Action by the District Board or Designee 
 
 If the District Board determines that the MEC’s action is inadequate, or if the MEC takes 

no action after the investigation, the District Board, after complying with applicable law, 
may do or recommend any one or more of the actions listed in Section C.4) above.  

 
E. If either the MEC or the District Board recommends corrective action, which, if adopted, 

would require a report to the Medical Board of California or the National Practitioner 
Data Bank, the Practitioner shall be notified of the proposed action and of his or her right 
to request a hearing in accordance with the Bylaws.  

 
Committee Approved 
Medical Executive Committee 12/04/07 
Administration  
Board of Directors 12/05/07 
 
 

17 
 



RELOCATION EXPENSE AGREEMENT 
 

 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, MADE AND ENTERED into this ___________, 2015, by and 

between the NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, hereinafter 

referred to as “District” and Allison Robinson, M.D., hereinafter referred to as “Physician.” 

 

I. 

RECITALS 

 

 1.01.  District is a Local Healthcare District, organized and existing under the California 

Local Health Care District Law, Health and Safety Code Section 32000, et seq., with its principal 

place of business in Bishop, California, at which location it operates Northern Inyo Hospital 

(hereinafter “Hospital”). 

 1.02.  Physician is licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, and is certified 

by the American Board of General Surgeons.   Physician has applied for membership on the 

Medical Staff of Northern Inyo Hospital.  Physician warrants that she is qualified for membership 

on the Provisional Active Medical Staff and Active Medical Staff of the Hospital and that there is 

no impediment to her obtaining such membership. 

 1.03.  The Board of Directors (hereinafter “Board”) of District has determined, pursuant 

to Health & Safety Code section 32121.3, that the Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff requires 

an additional physician practicing general surgery in order to insure adequate coverage of that 

medical specialty and, further, has determined that recruitment of such a physician would be in 

the best interest of the public health of the communities served by the District and would benefit 

the District. 

 1.04.  Physician desires to relocate her practice in Bishop, California. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PROMISES SET FORTH 

BELOW, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1 
 



II. 

COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES 

 

 2.01.  Physician agrees to relocate her practice in Bishop, California; to apply for and use 

her best efforts to obtain membership on the Provisional Active Medical Staff and Active 

Medical Staff of Northern Inyo Hospital, with privileges in General Surgery, to maintain such 

memberships continuously for an aggregate period of at least three (3) years and to maintain an 

active practice in General Surgery in the City of Bishop, California, for at least three (3) years. 

 2.02.  District agrees to pay up to $20,000, as incurred, to Physician for moving expenses 

(which shall include items such as moving company fees, U-Haul and other conveyance 

expenses, travel expenses, and lodging) to support her move to Bishop, California. 

2.03.  Physician agrees that should she fail to perform all of the acts promised in Section 

2.01 above, that she shall, not later than thirty (30) days after being given written notice by the 

District, repay to the District a prorated share, representing that portion of the three (3) years in 

which she is or will not be performing such acts, of those funds expended by the District pursuant 

to Section 2.02 above. For example, if Physician fulfills her obligations for 6 months, then she 

shall repay the District, with interest, $_____________ (representing the product of 6/36 x 

$__________). 

 

 

III. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 3.01. This is the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter set forth   

in the Relocation Agreement. It may not be modified except by a writing signed by each of the 

parties. 

 3.02. Any written notice given pursuant to the Agreement shall be deemed given when 

such notice is deposited in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid, addressed to the respective 

parties as follows:  

 

2 
 



NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, CA  93514 

 
Allison Robinson, M.D. 
C/O Northern Inyo Hospital 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, CA  93514 

 

 3.03. If either party brings legal action to enforce any rights or obligations under this 

Agreement, the Court shall have the power to award reasonable attorney’s fees to the prevailing 

party. 

 3.04. The rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement are personal to all parties, and 

may not be assigned without the express written consent of all parties. 

 3.05. This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, assigns, and personal 

representatives of the respective parties. 

 3.06.  The parties acknowledge and agree, in accord with the requirements of Health & 

Safety Code section 32121.3(c) (2), that no payment or other consideration shall be made for the 

referral of patients to the District’s hospital or to any affiliated non-profit corporation, and that no 

such payment or consideration is contemplated or intended. 

3.7. This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of California. 

 3.08.    The term of this agreement shall be from the first day Physician is granted 

privileges and is available to fulfill this agreement obligations until the last day of the thirty-sixth 

month thereafter. 

  

EXECUTED at Bishop, California, on the day and year first above written. 

 
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 
  
By ____________________________________ By ________________________________ 
     Victoria Alexander Lane,                                          Allison Robinson, M.D. 
     Chief Executive Officer, Northern Inyo Hospital      Physician 
  

3 
 



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT            
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

                                                      1206 B Clinic 
                                Northern Inyo Associates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into on this first day of , 2015 by and between 
Northern Inyo County Local Healthcare District (“District”) operating a 1206 B clinic under the name 
of Northern Inyo Associates and Louisa Salisbury (“Physician”). 

 
 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. District, which is organized and exists under the California Local Health Care District Law, Health 
& Safety Code section 32000, et seq., operates Northern Inyo Hospital (“Hospital”), a general acute 
care hospital serving northern Inyo County, California, including the communities of Bishop and 
Big Pine. 

 

B. The District Board of Directors has found, by Resolution No. 09-01, that it will be in the best 
interests of the public health of the aforesaid communities to obtain a licensed physician who is a 
board-certified/eligible specialist in the practice of General Pediatrics, to practice in said 
communities, on the terms and conditions set forth below. 

 

C. Physician is, engaged in the private practice of medicine, licensed to practice medicine in the State 
of California, and eligible for certification by the American Board of Pediatrics. Physician desires 
to maintain her practice ("Practice") in Bishop, California, and practice Pediatrics in the aforesaid 
communities. 

 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
I. 

COVENANTS OF PHYSICIAN 
 
Physician shall maintain her practice in medical offices (“Offices”) provided by District at a place to 
be mutually agreed upon in Bishop, California and shall, for the term of this Agreement, do the 
following: 

 
1.1. Services.  Physician shall provide Hospital with the benefit of her direct patient care expertise 

and experience, and shall render those services necessary to enable Hospital to achieve its goals 
and objectives for the provision of Pediatric Services. The scope of services to be performed by 
Physician is described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
Physician shall provide Hospital with patient medical record documentation of all direct patient 
care services rendered hereunder; such documentation shall be submitted to Hospital on an ongoing 
basis, and shall be in the form, and contain the information, requested by the Hospital such that a 
complete medical record can be assembled. 

Page 1 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



 

1.2. Limitation on Use of Space.  No part of any offices provided by the District either by lease or 
other arrangement shall be used at any time by Physician as anything other than the private 
practice of PEDIATRIC medicine unless specifically agreed to, in writing, by the parties. 

 
1.3. Medical Staff Membership and Service:  Physician shall: 

 
a) Maintain Active Medical Staff (“Medical Staff”) membership with Pediatric privileges 

sufficient to support a part time PEDIATRIC practice, for the term of this Agreement. 
 

b) Provide on-call coverage to the Hospital’s Emergency Services within the scope of 
privileges granted to her by Hospital and as required by the Hospital Medical Staff. 
Physician shall not be required to provide more than fifty percent (50%) of the annual call 
in weekly increments or as agreed upon with the other pediatrician. 

 

c) Maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to all costs and expenses 
incurred, and revenue acquired, pursuant to this Agreement to the extent, and in such detail, 
as will properly reflect all net costs, direct and indirect, of labor, materials, equipment, 
supplies, services, and other costs and expenses of whatever nature, for which she may 
claim payment or reimbursement from the District.  Physician acknowledges and agrees that 
any federal office authorized by law shall have access, for the purpose of audit and 
examination, to any books, documents, papers, and records of Physician which are relevant 
to this Agreement, at all reasonable times for a period of four (4) years following the 
termination of this Agreement, during which period Physician shall preserve and maintain 
said books, documents, papers, and records.  Physician further agrees to transfer to the 
District, upon termination of this Agreement, any books, documents, papers or records 
which possess long-term [i.e., more than four (4) years] value to the Hospital. Physician 
shall include a clause providing similar access in any sub-contract she may enter with a 
value of more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or for more than a twelve (12) month 
period, when said sub-contract is with a related organization. 

 

d) At all times comply with all relevant policies, rules and regulations of the Hospital, subject 
to California and federal statutes governing the practice of medicine. 

 
 
 
 

II. 
COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT 

 
2.1. Practice Management Services. Hospital will provide the following services in exchange for 
the fees agreed to in 3.05. 

 
a) Space.  Hospital shall make the Offices available for the operation of Physician’s Practice 

either through a direct let at no cost to the physician or through an arrangement with a 
landlord. 

b) Equipment. In consultation with Physician, Hospital shall provide all equipment as may be 
reasonably necessary for the proper operation and conduct of Physician's practice. Hospital 
shall repair, replace or supplement such equipment and maintain it in good working order. 

Page 2 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



2.2. General Services.  District shall furnish ordinary janitorial services, maintenance services, and 
utilities, including telephone service, as may be required for the proper operation and conduct 
of Physician’s Practice. 

 
2.3. Supplies.  District shall purchase and provide all supplies as may be reasonably required for the 

proper treatment of Physician’s Practice patients.  Physician shall inform Hospital of supply 
needs in a timely manner and shall manage the use of supplies in an efficient manner that 
promotes quality and cost-effective patient care. 

 
2.4. Personnel.  Physician and Hospital will mutually agree to staffing 

requirements. Physician shall not be required to maintain any personnel that she does not feel 
is appropriate for the practice. 

 
2.5. Business Operations.  District shall be responsible for all business operations related to 

operation of the Practice, including personnel management, billing and payroll functions. 
Physician will provide the appropriate billing codes, which will be used unless changed by 
mutual consent of the Physician and Hospital. Hospital will incur and pay all operating 
expenses of the Practice. 

 
2.6. Hospital Performance.  The responsibilities of District under this Article shall be subject to 

District’s discretion and its usual purchasing practices, budget limitations and applicable laws 
and regulations. 

 
2.7. Practice Hours. The District desires, and Physician agrees, that Physician’s Practice shall 

operate on a full-time basis, maintaining hours of operation in keeping with the full-time 
practice of one GENERAL Pediatrician while permitting a Pediatrics schedule sufficient to 
service the patients of the Practice. Full time shall mean an average of 4.5 days per week. 
Specific shifts will be scheduled according to normal operating procedures of the Practice and 
will be mutually agreed upon with Physician. If physician is up to date with charting and 
patient communications the ½ day may be taken off. 

 
 
 

III. 
COMPENSATION 

 
3.1. Compensation.  During the term of this agreement, District shall provide a salary to the 

physician of $200,000 per year. The District shall provide Medical, Dental and Vision 
insurance and the physician shall be eligible for all benefits provided the regular 
employees of the Healthcare District. The District will provide a one-time $10,000 sign 
on bonus upon receipt of a signed contract. 

 
3.2. Malpractice Insurance. District will secure and maintain malpractice insurance with limits of 

no less than $1 million per occurrence and $3 million per year. 
 
3.3. Benefits. For the term of  this Agreement, and no longer, Physician will be admitted to the 

Hospital's self-funded Medical Dental Vision Benefit Plan and be provided the benefits 
contained therein as an employee of the District. 

 
3.4. Billing for Professional Services.  Subject to section 2.05 above, Physician assigns to District 

Page 3 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



all claims, demands and rights of Physician to bill and collect for all professional services 
rendered to Practice patients, for all billings for Pediatric services, for all billings consulting 
performed or provided by the Physician. Physician acknowledges that Hospital shall be solely 
responsible for billing and collecting for all professional services provided by Physician to 
Practice patients at Practice and for all Pediatric services performed at the Hospital, and for 
managing all Practice receivables and payables, including those related to Medicare and 
MediCal beneficiaries. Physician shall not bill or collect for any services rendered to Practice 
patients or Hospital patients, and all Practice receivables and billings shall be the sole and 
exclusive property of the Practice.  In particular, any payments made pursuant to a payer 
agreement (including co-payments made by patients) shall constitute revenue of the Practice. 
In the event payments are made to Physician pursuant to any payer agreement, Physician shall 
promptly remit the payments directly to Hospital. 

 
3.5. CME and Vacation. Physician is entitled to 4 weeks (20 days) vacation and 2 weeks (10     
            days) CME time per year worked. District will reimburse up to $2,000 per year for CME     
            expenses. 

 
3.6. Student Loan Reimbursement. NIH will contribute the lower of the annual loan repayment 

required by the Physician’s loan agreement or $10,000. Payment will coincide with the 
completion of each year of service. 

 

 
 
 

IV. 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
4.1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be three (3) years beginning on ______________ 

2015 and ending on, _______________2018. 
 
4.2. Termination.  Notwithstanding the provisions of section 4.01, this Agreement may be 

terminated: 
 

a) By District or Physician at any time, without cause or penalty, upon one hundred and eighty 
(180) days’ prior written notice to the other party; 

 

b) Immediately by Hospital in its sole discretion if Physician fails to maintain the professional 
standards described in Article V of this Agreement; 

 

c) Immediately upon closure of the Hospital or Practice; 
 

d) By either party upon written notice to the other party in the event that any federal, state or 
local government or agency passes, issues or promulgates any law, rule, regulation, 
standard or interpretation at any time while this Agreement is in effect that prohibits, 
restricts, limits or in any way substantially changes the arrangement contemplated herein or 
which otherwise significantly affects either party’s rights or obligations under this 
Agreement; provided that in such event, Hospital must give notice to Physician equal to  
that provided to Hospital by the relevant federal, state or local government or agency. If this 
Agreement can be amended to the satisfaction of both parties to compensate for any such 
prohibition, restriction, limitation or change, this clause shall not be interpreted to prevent 
such amendment; or 

Page 4 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



e) By either party in the event of a material breach by the other party and, in such event, the 
non-breaching party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement after providing thirty 
(30) days’ written notice to the breaching party, explaining the breach, unless such breach is 
cured to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party within the thirty (30) days. 

 
4.3. Rights Upon Termination. Upon any termination or expiration of this Agreement, all 

rights and obligations of the parties shall cease except those rights and obligations that have 
accrued or expressly survive termination. 

 
 
 

V. 
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 

 
5.1. Medical Staff Membership. It is a condition of this Agreement that Physician maintains 

Active Medical Staff membership on the Hospital Medical Staff with appropriate clinical 
privileges and maintains such membership and privileges throughout the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
5.2. Licensure and Standards.  Physician shall: 

 

a) At all times be licensed to practice medicine in the State of California; 
 

b) Comply with all policies, bylaws, rules and regulations of Hospital, Hospital Medical Staff, 
and Practice, including those related to documenting all advice to patients and proper sign- 
off of lab and X-ray reports; 

 

c) Be a member in good standing of the Provisional or Active Medical Staff of Hospital; 
 

d) Maintain professional liability coverage in an amount required for membership on the 
Active Medical Staff of Hospital; 

 

e) Participate in continuing education as necessary to maintain licensure and the current 
standard of practice; and 

 

f) Comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of any and all governmental 
authorities, and applicable standards and recommendations of the Joint Commission. 

 

g) At all times conduct herself, professionally and publicly, in accordance with the standards 
of the medical profession, the American College of Pediatricians, the Hospital Medical 
Staff, and the District.   Further, she shall not violate any California law which prohibits (1) 
driving a motor vehicle under the influence of alcohol or prescription drugs or the 
combined influence of such substances, (2) unlawful use of controlled substances, (3) being 
intoxicated in a public place in such a condition as to be a danger to herself or others, 
and/or (4) conduct justifying imposition of an injunction prohibiting harassment of Hospital 
employees in their workplace.   Entry of any injunction, judgment, or order against 
Physician based upon facts, which constitutes the above offenses, shall be a material breach 
of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

VI. 
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES 

Page 5 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



6.1. Professional Relations. 
 

a) Independent Physician.  In the performance of Physician’s work and duties, Physician is at 
all times acting and performing as an independent physician, practicing the profession of 
medicine.  District shall neither have nor exercise control or direction over the methods by 
which Physician performs professional services pursuant to this Agreement; provided, 
however, that Physician agrees that all work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
in strict accordance with currently approved methods and practices in Physician’s 
professional specialty and in accordance with the standards set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 
6.2. Responsibility for Own Acts.  Each party will be responsible for its own acts or omissions and 

all claims, liabilities, injuries, suits, demands and expenses for all kinds which may result or 
arise out of any malfeasance or neglect, caused or alleged to have been caused by either party, 
their employees or representatives, in the performance or omission of any act or responsibility 
of either party under this contract.  In the event that a claim is made against both parties, it is 
the intent of both parties to cooperate in the defense of said claim and to cause their insurers to 
do likewise. However, both parties shall have the right to take any and all actions they believe 
necessary to protect their interest. 

 
 

VII. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
7.1. No Solicitation. Physician agrees that she will not, either directly or indirectly, during and 

after the term of this Agreement, call on, solicit or take away, or attempt to call on, solicit or 
take away any patients or patient groups with whom Physician dealt or became aware of as a 
result of Physician’s past, present or future affiliation with Hospital and Practice. 

 
7.2. Access to Records.  To the extent required by Section 1861(v)(i)(I) of the Social Security Act, 

as amended, and by valid regulation which is directly applicable to that Section, Physician 
agrees to make available upon valid written request from the Secretary of HHS, the 
Comptroller General, or any other duly authorized representatives, this Agreement and the 
books, documents and records of Physician to the extent that such books, documents and 
records are necessary to certify the nature and extent of Hospital’s costs for services provided 
by Physician. 

 
Physician shall also make available such subcontract and the books, documents, and records of 
any subcontractor if that subcontractor performs any of the Physician’s duties under this 
Agreement at a cost of $10,000.00 or more over a twelve (12) month period and if that 
subcontractor is organizationally related to Physician. 

 
Such books, documents, and records shall be preserved and available for four (4) years after the 
furnishing of services by Physician pursuant to this Agreement.  If Physician is requested to 
disclose books, documents or records pursuant to this subsection for purposes of an audit, 
Physician shall notify Hospital of the nature and scope of such request, and Physician shall 
make available, upon written request of Hospital, all such books, documents or records. 
Physician shall indemnify and hold harmless Hospital in the event that any amount of 
reimbursement is denied or disallowed because of the failure of Physician or any subcontractor 

Page 6 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



to comply with its obligations to maintain and make available books, documents, or records 
pursuant to this subsection.  Such indemnity shall include, but not be limited to the amount of 
reimbursement denied, plus any interest, penalties and legal costs. 

 
This section is intended to assure compliance with Section 1861 of the Social Security Act, as 
amended, and regulations directly pertinent to that Act. The obligations of Physician under this 
section are strictly limited to compliance with those provisions, and shall be given effect only 
to the extent necessary to insure compliance with those provisions.  In the event that the 
requirements or those provisions are reduced or eliminated, the obligations of the parties under 
this section shall likewise be reduced or eliminated. 

 
7.3. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the 

parties, but any such amendment must be in writing, dated, and signed by both parties. 
 
7.4. No Referral Fees. No payment or other consideration shall be made under this Agreement for 

the referral of patients, by Physician, to Hospital or to any nonprofit corporation affiliated with 
District. 

 
7.5. Repayment of Inducement. The parties stipulate and agree that the Physician under this 

Agreement, and the covenants of the District to provide office space, personal, equipment, and 
certain other benefits, are the minimum required to enable Physician to relocate herself to 
Bishop, California; that she is not able to repay such inducement, and no such repayment shall 
be required. 

 
7.6. Assignment.  Physician shall not assign, sell, transfer or delegate any of the Physician’s rights 

or duties, including by hiring or otherwise retaining additional physicians to perform services 
pursuant to this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Hospital. 

 
7.7. Attorneys’ Fees.  If any legal action or other proceeding is commenced, by either party, to 

enforce rights, duties, and/or responsibilities under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs. 

 
7.8. Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the 

laws of the State of California. 
 
7.9. Exhibits.  All Exhibits attached and referred to herein are fully incorporated by this 

reference. 
 
7.10. Notices.  All notices or other communications under this Agreement shall be sent to the parties 

at the addresses set forth below: 
 

Hospital: Administrator 
Northern Inyo Hospital 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, CA  93514 

 
Physician: Louisa Salisbury 

152 Pioneer Lane, Suite H 
Bishop, CA 93514 

Page 7 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



 

Notice may be given either personally or by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the 
party designated above at the address designated above, or an address subsequently specified in 
writing by the relevant party.  If given by mail, notice shall be deemed given two (2) days after 
the date of the postmark on the envelope containing such notice. 

 
7.11. Records.  All files, charts and records, medical or otherwise, generated by Physician in 

connection with services furnished during the term of this Agreement are the property of 
Physician. Physician agrees to maintain medical records according to Practice policies and 
procedures and in accordance with community standards. Each party agrees to maintain the 
confidentiality of all records and materials in accordance with all applicable state and federal 
laws. Hospital agrees to permit Physician to have access, during or after the term of the 
Agreement, to medical records generated by Physician if necessary in connection with claims, 
litigation, investigations, or treatment of patients. 

 
7.12. Prior Agreements.  This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement of the 

parties as to those matters contained in it. No prior oral or written understanding shall be of 
any force or effect with respect to the matters contained in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be modified only by a writing signed by each party or her/its lawful agent. 

 
7.13. Referrals.  This Agreement does not impose any obligation or requirement that Hospital shall 

make any referral of patients to Physician or that Physician shall make any referral of patients 
to Hospital.  The payment of compensation pursuant to section 3.01 is not based in any way on 
referrals of patients to Hospital. 

 
7.14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal or unenforceable, 

that provision shall be severed from this Agreement, and the remaining provisions shall remain 
enforceable between the parties. 

 
7.15. Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not 

operate as a waiver of that right. 
 
7.16. Gender and Number.  Use of the masculine gender shall mean the feminine or neuter, and 

the plural number the singular, and vice versa, as the context shall indicate. 
 
7.17. Authority and Executive.   By their signature below, each of the parties represent that they 

have the authority to execute this Agreement and do hereby bind the party on whose behalf 
their execution is made. 

 
7.18. Construction.  This Agreement has been negotiated and prepared by both parties and it shall 

be assumed, in the interpretation of any uncertainty, that both parties caused it to exist. 

Page 8 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



 
 
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY PHYSICIAN 
LOCAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
By    By    
      Victoria Alexander-Lane Louisa Salisbury, M.D. 
      Chief Executive Officer

Page 9 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF DUTIES OF THE PHYSICIAN 
 
 
POSITION SUMMARY 

 
The Physician is a Member of the Northern Inyo Hospital Active Medical Staff. Physician provides 
direct primary medical diagnosis and treatment to Practice and Hospital patients. The Physician will 
provide services commensurate with the equivalent of a full time Pediatric Practice.  Full time shall 
mean regularly scheduled office hours to meet the service area demand and performance of surgeries 
as may be required. 

 
Specifically, the Physician will: 

 
1. Provide high quality primary medical care services. 

 
2. Direct the need for on-going educational programs that serve the patient. 

 
3. Evaluate and develop treatment plans to facilitate the individual healthcare needs of each patient. 

 
4. Work with all Practice personnel to meet the healthcare needs of all patients. 

 
5. Assess, evaluate, and monitor on-going health care and medication of Practice patients. 

 
6. Manage all medical and Pediatric emergencies. 

 
7. Participate in professional development activities and maintain professional affiliations. 

 
8. Participate with Hospital to meet all federal and state regulations. 

Page 10 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title:  Professional Conduct. Prohibition of Disruptive or Discriminatory Behavior 
Scope:  Hospital wide Department:  Medical Staff 
Source:  Medical Staff Effective Date: 12/5/07 

 
 

POLICY 
 
 

All Medical Staff members shall conduct themselves at all times while on Hospital premises in a 
courteous, professional, respectful, collegial, and cooperative manner. This applies to interactions and 
communications with or relating to Medical Staff colleagues, AHPs, nursing and technical personnel, 
other caregivers, other Hospital personnel, patients, patients’ family members and friends, visitors, and 
others.  Such conduct is necessary to promote high quality patient care and to maintain a safe work 
environment.  Disruptive, discriminatory, or harassing behavior, as defined below, are prohibited and 
will not be tolerated. 

 
Definitions 

 
A. “Disruptive Behavior” is marked by disrespectful behavior manifested through personal 

interaction with practitioners, Hospital personnel, patients, family members, or others, which: 
 

1. Interferes, or tends to interfere with high quality patient care or the orderly 
administration of the Hospital or the Medical Staff; or 

 
2. Creates a hostile work environment; or 

 
3. Is directed at a specific person or persons, would reasonably be expected to cause 

substantial emotional distress, and serves no constructive purpose in advancing the 
goals of health care. 

 
B. “Discrimination” is conduct directed against any individual (e.g., against another Medical Staff 

member, AHP, Hospital employee, or patient) that deprives the individual of full and equal 
accommodations, advantages, facilities, privileges, or services, based on the individual’s race, 
religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
disability, marital status, sex, gender, or sexual orientation. 

 
C. “Sexual harassment” is unwelcome verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, which may 

include verbal harassment (such as epithets, derogatory comments or slurs), physical 
harassment (such as unwelcome touching, assault, or interference with movement or work), and 
visual harassment (such as the display of derogatory or sexual-themed cartoons, drawings or 
posters). Sexual harassment includes unwelcome advances, requests for sexual favors, and any 
other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when (1) submission to or rejection 
of this conduct by an individual is used as a factor in decisions affecting hiring, evaluation, 
retention, promotion, or other aspects of employment; or (2) this conduct substantially 

Page 11 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



interferes with the individual’s employment or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
work environment.  Sexual harassment also includes conduct indicating that employment 
and/or employment benefits are conditioned upon acquiescence in sexual activities. 

 
Examples of Prohibited Conduct 

 
Examples of prohibited, disruptive conduct may include, but are not limited to, any of the conducts 
described below if it is found to interfere, or tend to interfere, with patient care or the orderly 
administration of the Hospital or Medical Staff; or, if it creates a hostile work environment; or, if it is 
directed at a specific person or persons, causes substantial emotional distress, and has no legitimate 
purpose: 

 
A. Any striking, pushing, or inappropriate touching of Hospital Staff or others; 

 
B. Any conduct that would violate Medical Staff and/or Hospital policies relating to 

discrimination and/or sexual harassment; 
 
C. Forcefully throwing, hitting, pushing, or slamming objects in an expression of anger or 

frustration; 
 
D. Yelling, screaming, or using an unduly loud voice directed at patients, Hospital employees, 

other practitioners, or others; 
 
E. Refusing to respond to a request by any caregiver for orders, instructions, or assistance with the 

care of a patient, including, but not limited to, repeated failure to respond to calls or pages; 
 
F. Use of racial, ethnic, epithetic, or derogatory comments, or profanity, directed at Hospital 

employees or others; 
 
G. Criticism which is unreasonable and unprofessional of Hospital or Medical Staff personnel 

(including other practitioners), policies or equipment, or other negative comments that 
undermine patient trust in the Hospital or Medical Staff in the presence or hearing of patients, 
patients’ family members, and/or visitors; 

 
H. Use of medical record entries to criticize Hospital or Medical Staff personnel, policies, or 

equipment, other practitioners, or others; 
 
I. Unauthorized use and/or disclosure of confidential or personal information related to any 

employee, patient, practitioner, or other person; 
 
J. Use of threatening or offensive gestures; 

 
K. Intentional filing of false complaints or accusations; 

 
L. Any form of retaliation against a person who has filed a complaint against a practitioner 

alleging violation of the above standard of conduct; 

Page 12 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



M. Use of physical or verbal threats to Hospital employees, other practitioners, or others, 
including, without limitation, threats to get an employee fired or disciplined; 

 
N. Persisting to criticize, or to discuss performance or quality concerns with particular Hospital 

employees or others after being asked to direct such comments exclusively through other 
channels; 

 
O. Persisting in contacting a Hospital employee or other person to discuss personal or performance 

matters after that person or a supervisory person, the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), or 
designee, or Medical Staff leader, has requested that such contacts be discontinued [NOTE: 
MEDICAL STAFF MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO PROVIDE COMMENTS, 
SUGGESTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS RELATING TO HOSPITAL EMPLOYEES, 
SERVICES OR FACILITIES; WHERE SUCH INFORMATION IS PROVIDED THROUGH 
APPROPRIATE ADMINISTRATIVE OR SUPERVISORY CHANNELS]; 

 
P. Obstructing the peer review process by intentionally refusing, without justification, to attend 

meetings or respond to questions about the practitioner’s conduct or professional practice when 
the practitioner is the subject of a focused review or investigation. 

 
PROCEDURE 

 
 
 
Hospital Staff Response to Disruptive or Discriminatory Behavior or Sexual 

Harassment (“Walk Away Rule”) 
 

Any Hospital employee (“Caregiver”) who believes that he or she is being subjected to disruptive or 
discriminatory behavior or sexual harassment within the meaning of this Policy by a Medical Staff 
member is authorized and directed to take the following actions: 

 
A. Promptly contact the Caregiver’s immediate supervisor to report the situation and to arrange for 

the transition of patient care as necessary in order to permit the Caregiver to avoid conversing 
or interacting with the Practitioner; 

 
B. Discontinue all conversation or interaction with the Practitioner except to the extent necessary 

to transition patient care responsibility safely and promptly from the Caregiver to another 
qualified person as directed by the Caregiver’s supervisor; 

 
C. Continue work or patient care activity elsewhere as directed; and 

 
D. Consult with supervisory personnel or with the Director of Human Resources about filing a 

written report of the alleged incident. 
 
 
 
Enforcement 

 
A. Allegations 

Page 13 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



1. All allegations of disruptive behavior, discrimination, or sexual harassment, as defined 
above, by a Practitioner involving a patient or involving another member of the Medical or 
AHP staff shall be forwarded, in writing, to Medical Staff Administration.  If the Chief of 
Staff determines that the allegations are supported by reliable evidence, the Chief of Staff 
shall forward the allegation to the Medical Executive Committee (“MEC”) for action 
consistent with the Medical Staff Bylaws. Pursuant to Section 7.1.2.5.2 of these Bylaws, 
the Chief of Staff shall also consult with the Administrator. 

 
2. Allegations of disruptive behavior, discrimination, or sexual harassment, as defined above, 

by a Practitioner, directed toward hospital employees or persons other than patients and 
Medical Staff members, will be immediately forwarded to the Chief of Staff. The Chief of 
Staff, or designee, shall promptly conduct an initial evaluation.  If the Chief of Staff or 
designee determines that the complaint may be valid, she or he shall inform the Hospital 
Administrator and shall then proceed as provided herein. 

 
3. If the allegations involve the Chief of Staff, the Vice Chief of Staff shall take over the 

responsibilities of the Chief of Staff under this section. If the allegations involve a member 
of the Medical Executive Committee, that member shall not participate or be present during 
the Medical Executive Committee’s consideration of the matter. 

 
4. Initial complaints of disruptive behavior, discrimination, or sexual harassment by a 

Practitioner shall be documented on an incident reporting form and shall be maintained in 
the Medical Staff Office. Where possible, reports should include: 

 
a. Name(s) of individual(s) involved; 
b. Date, time and place of incident; 
c. A factual description and detailing of the incident; 
d. All witnesses to the incident including any patient or patient’s family member or visitor; 
e. The immediate effects or consequences of the incident; and 
f. Any action taken by anyone to intervene or remedy the incident. 

 
B. Initial Investigation and Mediation 

 
1. The Chief of Staff shall promptly establish an Ad Hoc Committee to investigate the 

complaint. If the complaining party is a Hospital employee, the Ad Hoc Committee shall 
include: the Chief of Staff or designee, the Chair of the practitioner’s Clinical Department 
or designee, the complaining employee’s immediate supervisor, and the Hospital 
Administrator or designee. The Ad Hoc Committee shall take written statements from the 
complaining party, any witnesses, and the accused.  The complaining party shall be 
informed of the process to investigate and respond to such allegations and shall be informed 
that retaliation for making such allegations will not be tolerated. The complaining party 
shall also be informed that if he or she makes a written statement, the statement may be 
made available to the Practitioner who is the subject of the allegations. 

 
2. All witness statements and investigation documents shall be maintained in the Medical 

Staff Office as confidential, peer review documents. 
 

3. If the complaint appears to be supported by reliable evidence, the Ad Hoc Committee shall 
meet with the Practitioner who is the subject of the complaint and advise the Practitioner of 

Page 14 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



his or her obligations under this policy; that a complaint has been made; and that no 
retaliation against any complaining person, witness or investigator will be tolerated. The 
Chair of the Ad Hoc Committee shall provide the Practitioner with sufficient information to 
understand and respond to the allegations made by the complaining party.  The Practitioner 
shall be permitted to respond orally or in writing to the allegations. Any written statement 
provided by the Practitioner and all documentation of the investigation created by the Chief 
of Staff or designee, or by the Ad Hoc Committee, shall be maintained as confidential 
Medical Staff documents.  The Ad Hoc Committee meeting with the Practitioner shall not 
constitute a hearing and the Practitioner shall not be entitled to legal counsel or other 
representation during the meeting. The Practitioner may, of course, seek legal counsel 
outside the meeting process. 

 
4. The Chief of Staff or designee shall advise the Hospital Administrator of the complaint and 

the status of the investigation.   Although legal counsel are not permitted to be present 
during interviews or meetings provided for in these provisions, the Chief of Staff or 
designee are encouraged to consult with Medical Staff legal counsel and the Practitioner, at 
his or her own expense, may consult legal counsel outside the investigation and meeting 
process. 

 
5. The Chief of Staff or designee and Hospital Administrator shall take appropriate steps to 

assure that employees, witnesses and others are protected from discrimination, harassment, 
or retaliation pending the resolution of the complaint. 

 
6. The Ad Hoc Committee shall attempt, if feasible and appropriate, to persuade the parties to 

agree to a resolution of the complaint, which would be produced in written form and signed 
by both parties. 

 
7. If the Practitioner is determined to be at fault, the Ad Hoc Committee may enter into a 

voluntary conduct agreement with the Practitioner; may refer the Practitioner to the Medical 
Staff Assistance Committee; may refer the Practitioner for counseling or evaluation; or may 
coordinate other steps to reach an effective voluntary resolution of the issue. 

 
C. Formal Action 

 
1. If the Ad Hoc Committee, or its Chair, concludes that the matter cannot be resolved through 

voluntary actions and agreements, the Chair shall refer the matter to the MEC with a 
request for formal corrective action in accordance with Article 8 of the Bylaws. In the event 
of such referral, any member of the Medical Executive Committee who is the subject of the 
investigation shall not participate or be present during the Medical Executive Committee’s 
consideration of the matter, except as is provided in subparagraph 2 or 3, below. 

 
2. If immediate action must be taken in response to an imminent risk to the health or safety of 

any person, any person authorized under Section 7.1 to request corrective action may 
summarily suspend the Practitioner’s Medical Staff membership and privileges in 
accordance with Section 7.2 of the Bylaws. In that event, the Practitioner shall be entitled to 
request an interview with the MEC to review the suspension within five (5) days of the 
suspension.  The provisions of the Bylaws shall be followed for review of summary 
suspensions. 

Page 15 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



3. If the MEC initiates a corrective action investigation of the complaint, it shall, where 
feasible, assure that the investigation, although not constituting a hearing, shall include the 
following elements: 

 
a. The Practitioner shall be entitled to review, but not retain, copies of statements made by 

complaining parties and witnesses. The Practitioner shall also be entitled to receive a 
summary of other adverse information considered relevant to the investigation. 

 
b. The Practitioner shall be entitled to respond to the adverse statements and information 

and to submit oral or written information in response, subject to such conditions and 
limitations as the MEC may determine. 

 
c. If the MEC determines that there is substantial evidence that a violation of this policy 

has occurred, it may do any one or more of the following: 
 

1) Issue a written or oral reprimand.  If a written or oral reprimand is issued, the 
Practitioner shall be entitled to reply orally or in writing to the MEC.  A copy of any 
written reprimand and any written reply shall be maintained in the Practitioner’s 
credentials file.  A written reprimand shall not be considered medical disciplinary 
action, shall not be reported to the Medial Board of California or the National 
Practitioner Data Bank, and shall not entitle the Practitioner to a hearing or appeal 
under Article 8 of the Bylaws. 

 
2) Recommend that the Practitioner undertake psychoanalysis, therapy, counseling, or 

training. 
 

3) Recommend other corrective action in accordance with Article 8 of the Bylaws. 
 

4) If the MEC recommends action, which would entitle the Practitioner to request a 
Medical Staff hearing, special notice to the Practitioner shall be given in accordance 
with Section 8.6.2 of the Bylaws. 

 
D. Action by the District Board or Designee 

 
If the District Board determines that the MEC’s action is inadequate, or if the MEC takes no 
action after the investigation, the District Board, after complying with applicable law, may do 
or recommend any one or more of the actions listed in Section C.4) above. 

 
E. If either the MEC or the District Board recommends corrective action, which, if adopted, would 

require a report to the Medical Board of California or the National Practitioner Data Bank, the 
Practitioner shall be notified of the proposed action and of his or her right to request a hearing 
in accordance with the Bylaws. 

 
Committee Approved 
Medical Executive Committee 12/04/07 
Administration  
Board of Directors 12/05/07 

 

Page 16 of 16, 10:09 AM3/31/2015  



RELOCATION EXPENSE AGREEMENT 
 

 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, MADE AND ENTERED into this ___________, 2015, by and 

between the NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HEALTHCARE DISTRICT, hereinafter 

referred to as “District” and Louisa Salisbury, M.D., hereinafter referred to as “Physician.” 

 

I. 

RECITALS 

 

 1.01.  District is a Local Healthcare District, organized and existing under the California 

Local Health Care District Law, Health and Safety Code Section 32000, et seq., with its principal 

place of business in Bishop, California, at which location it operates Northern Inyo Hospital 

(hereinafter “Hospital”). 

 1.02.  Physician is licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, and is certified 

by the American Board of Pediatricians.   Physician has applied for membership on the Medical 

Staff of Northern Inyo Hospital.  Physician warrants that she is qualified for membership on the 

Provisional Active Medical Staff and Active Medical Staff of the Hospital and that there is no 

impediment to her obtaining such membership. 

 1.03.  The Board of Directors (hereinafter “Board”) of District has determined, pursuant 

to Health & Safety Code section 32121.3, that the Northern Inyo Hospital Medical Staff requires 

an additional physician practicing pediatrics in order to insure adequate coverage of that medical 

specialty and, further, has determined that recruitment of such a physician would be in the best 

interest of the public health of the communities served by the District and would benefit the 

District. 

 1.04.  Physician desires to relocate her practice in Bishop, California. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PROMISES SET FORTH 

BELOW, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1 
 



II. 

COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES 

 

 2.01.  Physician agrees to relocate her practice in Bishop, California; to apply for and use 

her best efforts to obtain membership on the Provisional Active Medical Staff and Active 

Medical Staff of Northern Inyo Hospital, with privileges in pediatrics, to maintain such 

memberships continuously for an aggregate period of at least three (3) years and to maintain an 

active practice in pediatrics in the City of Bishop, California, for at least three (3) years. 

 2.02.  District agrees to pay up to $15,000, as incurred, to Physician for moving expenses 

(which shall include items such as moving company fees, U-Haul and other conveyance 

expenses, travel expenses, and lodging) to support her move to Bishop, California. 

2.03.  Physician agrees that should she fail to perform all of the acts promised in Section 

2.01 above, that she shall, not later than thirty (30) days after being given written notice by the 

District, repay to the District a prorated share, representing that portion of the three (3) years in 

which she is or will not be performing such acts, of those funds expended by the District pursuant 

to Section 2.02 above. For example, if Physician fulfills her obligations for 6 months, then she 

shall repay the District, with interest, $_____________ (representing the product of 6/36 x 

$__________). 

 

 

III. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 3.01. This is the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter set forth   

in the Relocation Agreement. It may not be modified except by a writing signed by each of the 

parties. 

 3.02. Any written notice given pursuant to the Agreement shall be deemed given when 

such notice is deposited in the U.S. Mail, first class postage prepaid, addressed to the respective 

parties as follows:  

 

2 
 



NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, CA  93514 

 
Louisa Salisbury, M.D. 
C/O Northern Inyo Hospital 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, CA  93514 

 

 3.03. If either party brings legal action to enforce any rights or obligations under this 

Agreement, the Court shall have the power to award reasonable attorney’s fees to the prevailing 

party. 

 3.04. The rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement are personal to all parties, and 

may not be assigned without the express written consent of all parties. 

 3.05. This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, assigns, and personal 

representatives of the respective parties. 

 3.06.  The parties acknowledge and agree, in accord with the requirements of Health & 

Safety Code section 32121.3(c) (2), that no payment or other consideration shall be made for the 

referral of patients to the District’s hospital or to any affiliated non-profit corporation, and that no 

such payment or consideration is contemplated or intended. 

3.7. This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of California. 

 3.08.    The term of this agreement shall be from the first day Physician is granted 

privileges and is available to fulfill this agreement obligations until the last day of the thirty-sixth 

month thereafter. 

  

EXECUTED at Bishop, California, on the day and year first above written. 

 
NORTHERN INYO COUNTY LOCAL 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 
  
By ____________________________________ By ________________________________ 
     Victoria Alexander Lane,                                           Louisa Salisbury, M.D. 
     Chief Executive Officer, Northern Inyo Hospital      Physician 
  

3 
 




